
SHowing Animals Respect and Kindness 
PO Box 28 

Geneva, IL 60134 
www.SHARKonline.org !!!

Oklahoma Tax Commission      August 31, 2015 
2501 North Lincoln Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73194 !!
Please consider this an official complaint for potential failure to pay substantial sales 
taxes involving Michael Daugherty of Anadarko OK, and United States Senator James 
Inhofe. !
In 2013 and 2014, Senator Inhofe held political fundraisers in Oklahoma where live 
pigeon shoots were held. Senator Inhofe, through two of his Political Action 
Committee’s (PAC’s), paid Mr. Daugherty a total of $10,000 for pigeons used in those 
shoots.   !
Pigeon shoots are notorious for their black market commerce where no taxes are paid, 
and based on the exact dollar amounts paid to Mr. Daugherty ($3,000 in 2013 and 
$7,000 in 2014) it is highly likely that no sales tax was paid. In other words, this appears 
to have been a very much cash under the table operation. If so, then both Mr. 
Daugherty and Senator Inhofe have engaged in a conspiracy to defraud the State 
of Oklahoma by deliberately not paying sales tax (and in Mr. Daugherty’s case, 
potentially income tax derived from the sale of the birds). !
From what we have discovered, Mr. Daugherty purchased the pigeons used for the 
Inhofe political fundraiser in Kansas, brought them into Oklahoma and then sold them 
to the Inhofe campaign. This is important because it means that Mr. Daugherty was 
acting as a broker and not raising the birds himself. Our information comes from a 
Facebook post on 9/2/14 made by Mr. Daugherty where he states that he was going to 
Kansas to “…get pigeons from the Amish for a pigeon shoot.”  The Inhofe pigeon 
shoot was held on 9/5/14, just three days later. !
From Mr. Daugherty’s Facebook page: https://www.facebook.com/michael.daugherty.
92317 !!
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"  !!
It should also be noted that Mr. Daugherty has a history of illegal dealings involving 
birds. In 2006, he was caught participating in an illegal cockfight (http://newsok.com/
former-deputy-named-in-cockfighting-case/article/2825582), and in this legal brief, it 
states what he plead guilty to: 
  
https://turtletalk.files.wordpress.com/2008/01/us-brief-gachot.pdf !
"Co-defendant Daugherty entered a guilty plea to Count Three of the Indictment 
charging the misdemeanor offense of Sponsoring or Exhibiting an Animal in an Animal 
Fighting Venture, in violation of 7 U.S.C. §2156.  (Doc. 85-86)" !
It is therefore very possible that Senator Inhofe knew he was dealing with 
someone with a criminal background and did so to avoid having to pay proper 
taxes on the birds he was purchasing. !
On August 25th, 2015, we wrote to the your agency to see if financial transactions 
involving the sale of pigeons was taxable.  This was your response: !
"The sale of live animals are sales taxable, unless specifically exempt.” !
The exemptions listed that might possibly apply were as follows: 

http://newsok.com/former-deputy-named-in-cockfighting-case/article/2825582
https://turtletalk.files.wordpress.com/2008/01/us-brief-gachot.pdf


710:65-19-7. Animals and animal related, non-farm !
(a) Sales of animals to a person who holds a valid sales tax permit and who is regularly 
engaged in raising animals for sale are exempt from sales tax. Purchases made by 
persons primarily engaged in raising animals for any other purpose or use other than 
raising animals for sale are subject to sales tax. !
(d) Sales of animals that are not defined as "livestock" by Section 710:65-13-15 are 
subject to tax if the purchaser is not the holder of a valid sales tax permit who is 
regularly engaged in the business of raising the animals for marketing or reselling the 
animals. !
g) Sales of animals or items exempted by this section will qualify for exemption only 
where the purchaser certifies in writing on a copy of each invoice or sales ticket that 
"(The Purchaser) is regularly engaged in the business of raising animal life for marketing 
and that the items purchased exempt from sales tax will be used only in that business." 
[Source: Amended at 11 Ok Reg 3521, eff 6-26-94; Amended at 15 Ok Reg 2827, eff 
6-25-98; Amended at 17 Ok Reg 2708, eff 6-25-00] !
The purchaser in this case, “Friends of Jim Inhofe” and the “Inhofe Victory Committee 
2014” are PACs and clearly not "regularly engaged in the business of raising the 
animals for marketing or reselling the animals,” or are “...regularly engaged in the 
business of raising animal life for marketing.” Therefore, they absolutely should have 
paid sales tax and it was their responsibility to do it. Senator Inhofe, as a long 
time lawmaker, simply cannot plead ignorance to his responsibilities to pay his 
proper taxes.  !
We must also note that Senator Inhofe has planned another pigeon shoot for 9/11/15. 
If Mr. Daugherty is once again procuring pigeons for Senator Inhofe, then they may be 
defrauding the state of sales tax in 2015, as they had for the previous two years.   !
Based on the information we have provided, we request a full investigation into the 
practices of both Senator Inhofe and Mr. Daugherty. !!
Sincerely, !!
Steve Hindi 
President, SHowing Animals Respect and Kindness 



Details of the payments: !
The first payment that we discovered to Mr. Daugherty totaled $3,000.  The payment 
was made on 9/06/13 by the “Friends of Jim Inhofe” Political Action Committee, and 
was found in their report filed on 10/15/13 on the Federal Election Commission 
website (http://www.fec.gov/). The page containing the payment is in this email. The 
PDF of the entire report can be sent upon request. !
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The second payment that we discovered to Mr. Daugherty was for $7,000.  The 
payment was made on 9/06/13 by the “Inhofe Victory Committee 2014” Political 
Action Committee, and was found in their report filed on 10/15/14 on the Federal 
Election Commission website (http://www.fec.gov/).  The page containing the payment 
is in this email.  The PDF of the entire report can be sent upon request.   !
• You will see in the 2014 campaign finance record that it specifically states that 
Mr. Daugherty was paid for “birds.” !!!
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